
WETLAND COMMISSION 
TOWN HALL 

21 FIELD PARK DRIVE, HADDAM 
Monday, 12 May 2014 

Regular Meeting 
Unapproved Minutes 

Subject to Change by the Commission 
 
ATTENDANCE 

X Paul Best, Vice Chairman 

X Jeremy DeCarli 

X Dan Iwanicki, Secretary 

X Joe Laurenza 

X Joe Stephens 

X Mark Stephens, Chairman 

X Thomas Worthley 

A Mal Gorin, Alternate 

A Robin Maule, Alternate 

X Jim Puska, Wetland Enforcement Officer 

X Bunny Hall Batzner, Recording Clerk 

  

  

 
 
1.  Call to Order & Attendance  
 
Mr. M. Stephens, chairman, called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and all regular members 
were seated. 
 
2.  Additions/Corrections to Agenda 
 
Add:  Public Hearing and Meeting:  Eagle Landing, LLC, Proposed Selective Timber Harvest and 
Two (2) Stream Crossings, on Approximately 87 Acres Located off of High Street and Walkley Hill 
Road, Higganum, CT.  Further Identified as Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #042-1, 
Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #043, Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #044, Assessor’s 
Map #14 Assessor’s Lot #092. 
 
The Commission approved the agenda as amended unanimously. 
 
3. Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
4. Wetland Enforcement Officer’s Report 
 
None. 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS 
 
a. Aydin Caginalp, Applicant & Owner.  Location:  268 Walkley Hill Road, Haddam, CT.  
Assessor’s Map #26, Assessor’s Lot #004-1.  Proposed Activity:  Clean Ponds by Hydro 
Suction to Remove Sand and Sediment.  Clean Upstream Sand and Sediment Containment 
Basin. 
 
Bruno Morasutti, owner, and Amy Roper, owner, were present. 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
12 May 2014  
Unapproved Minutes 

2 

 
This is a continuation from 14 April 2014. 
 
A brief discussion followed in regard to last month’s presentation.  Mr. Iwanicki asked when the 
work will occur.  Amy Roper, one of the owners, stated hopefully, the work will begin after 7 June. 
Mr. Iwanicki also asked if the map showing the location of the spoils as indicated by Mr. Caginalp 
at last month’s meeting was in the file.  Mrs. Batzner stated yes.  Mr. Iwanicki stated that the 
WEO will be reviewing the site when work begins. 
 
MOTION:  Tom Worthley made a motion to approve proposed dredging of ponds, and clean 
upstream sand and sediment containment basin, Assessor’s Map #26 Lot #4-1 per site plan 
submitted and discussed at the April 14

th
, IW meeting.  See map on file in the Land use Office.  

Conditions: 1. Standard Permit Conditions.  2. Special Conditions/Modifications.  No.  Dan 
Iwanicki seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
b. MJM Land Development, LLC, Applicant & Owner.  Location:  Williamsburg Road, 
Higganum, CT.  Assessor’s Map #54, Assessor’s Lot #23.  Proposed Activity:  Driveway 
Crossing of Wetland Area to Two (2) Proposed Houses on Two (2) Proposed Lots.  
Construction of One (1) House within Upland Review Area.  Proposed Access Driveway 
Construction & Grading within Upland Review Area. 
 
E. Paul Lambert, Lambert Engineering, engineer for the applicant/owner, was present. 
 
This is a continuation from 14 April 2014. 
 
Mr. Best asked for clarification regarding the phasing of the proposed activity pertaining to the 
number of houses.  Mr. Lambert stated that one of the two proposed houses is within the upland 
review area. 
 
Mr. Iwanicki asked Mr. Lambert if he had received the memo from Jeff Jacobson, town engineer, 
dated 12 May 2014.  Mr. Lambert had not received the memo and a copy was given to him. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens reported that he, Mr. Best, Mr. Iwanicki, and Mr. Lambert were present for the 
site walk scheduled on Saturday, 19 April 2014, and that there was not a quorum.  Mr. Iwanicki 
stated that the proposed crossing area is a rocky bed; and that he visited the site again after a 
rain storm and found that although there was no water, per se, running through the proposed 
driveway crossing it was very wet.  Mr. Iwanicki also stated that the retention pond was 
completely full and was flowing and that the Public Works Dept. needs to be advised of this. 
 
Mr. Iwanicki stated that it’s a viable place, even though it’s at the beginning of the head waters 
and it’s very rocky, as he witnessed two spotted salamanders, frogs, and a number of birds.  Mr. 
Iwanicki asked if a box culvert was considered.  Mr. Lambert stated no, but that he did pick an 
over-sized pipe.  Mr. Iwanicki stated that it would probably be advantageous to the wetland area 
to have an open box culvert as opposed to a piped culvert.  
 
Mr. Iwanicki stated that another issue is the width of the driveway – 24 feet wide for two houses – 
and that he doesn’t believe this much wetland area needs to be disturbed.  Mr. Laurenza stated 
the proposal exceeds the regulations.  Mr. M. Stephens stated he thought the proposal was for 
two separate driveways and that was the reason for the 24 foot width with a border between the 
two driveways.  Mr. Lambert stated yes.  Mr. Iwanicki stated that was not his impression.  Mr. 
Puska asked if the map shows two separate driveways.  Mr. Lambert stated it doesn’t.  Mr. Lam-
bert also stated that he spoke to Mrs. Glidden, town planner, prior to submitting the application 
and that she had indicated that the Commission would want to see a combined driveway to 
reduce the disturbance area when crossing the wetlands.  Mr. Puska stated perhaps in the eyes 
of the Commission, but in the eyes of public improvement, it can’t be done as it exceeds the 
specifications for driveway width.  Discussion followed at length in regard to the driveway – 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
12 May 2014  
Unapproved Minutes 

3 

shared or not and width.  Mr. Lambert stated that he doesn’t believe there will be a problem to 
separate the driveway noting that the proposal is for the driveway to separate approximately 30 
feet upland once the wetland has been crossed.  Mr. Lambert again stated that he was lead to 
believe that the Commission wanted a single driveway and that was the reason for combining the 
two.  Mr. Puska asked if two separate 12 foot driveways could be installed on each property.  Mr. 
Lambert stated yes.  Mr. Puska asked what the separating distance would be.  Mr. Lambert 
stated as little as a foot.  Mr. Lambert stated that he has 24 feet to work with and that he can 
install two 10 foot wide driveways.  Mr. Laurenza asked if he could do the driveways at a total of 
22 feet lessening the impact.  Mr. Lambert stated he thought he could.  Mr. M. Stephens noted 
that this wetland is rocky with very little head water as the water is underground. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked Mr. Iwanicki if he was talking about an open bottom box culvert.  Mr. Iwanicki 
stated yes.  Mr. Lambert stated that the installation of a box culvert would create more disturb-
ance than the proposed pipe.  Mr. Lambert stated he could oversize the pipe.  Discussion 
followed in regard to a box culvert v. a pipe culvert – a pipe restricts the flow of amphibious 
wildlife from going back and forth; that an open bottom box culvert with a natural bottom 
simulates what was there and the amphibious wildlife are more likely to use it as a passageway 
as opposed to a round pipe; trying to minimize the amount of disturbance; installation of an 
oversized pipe and creating a natural bottom by putting it six inches down (current proposal - 18 
inch pipe, can increase to - 24 inch pipe); and that there is no curbing proposed allowing 
amphibious wildlife to move freely. 
 
Mr. Iwanicki asked if some of the P&Z issues noted in Mr. Jacobson’s memo would impact the 
final design work pertaining to wetlands.  Mr. Puska stated there are some issues that would 
impact the final design in driveway radius as there currently do not meet the regulations.  The 
Commission and Mr. Lambert reviewed a map. 
 
Mr. Iwanicki asked Mr. M. Stephens to allow Mr. Lambert time to review Mr. Jacobson’s report, 
decide what the applicant wants, and then return to the Commission.  Mr. M. Stephens agreed, 
but wanted to discuss the matter in order for Mr. Lambert to know what the Commission was 
looking for. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked if the Commission had a problem in separating the driveways to the extent 
that had been previously discussed.  Mr. Puska stated no, as long has it doesn’t interfere with the 
other items that need to be addressed in Mr. Jacobson’s memo. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked if the driveways would need to be paved since they’ll be separated.  Mr. 
Puska stated that was an issue before as it was a shared driveway, but will research to see if the 
two driveways need to be paved. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked about the snow storage reserve area.  Mr. Puska stated that this is a Public 
Works Dept. concern.  Mr. M. Stephens suggested that Mr. Lambert meet and discuss this matter 
with Mr. Jacobson.  Mr. Lambert asked the Commission if they normally have the town engineer 
review the applications. 
 
Mr. Laurenza asked which issues will concern the Wetlands.  Mr. Iwanicki and Mr. M. Stephens 
stated it’s now unclear.  Mr. Worthley stated if the developer has to lengthen the radius to create 
a wider curve, it could have the effect of impacting more of the wetland area.  Mr. Lambert stated 
he doesn’t believe so, but understands what Mr. Worthley was talking about. 
 
Items to be addressed:  1) Revise 18 inch pipe to a 24 inch pipe with a natural bottom.  2) Two 
physically separated driveways not to exceed the maximum width for driveways per the Regula-
tions for Public Improvements.  3) No curbing.  Mr. Lambert was again advised to speak to Mr. 
Jacobson regarding this matter. 
 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
12 May 2014  
Unapproved Minutes 

4 

Mr. J. Stephens asked about the utilities.  Mr. Lambert stated that they are underground and are 
noted on the map.  Mr. J. Stephens asked if the utilities will go underneath the wetland area 
where the culvert will be located.  Mr. Lambert stated no that they will go in the fill area on top of 
the culvert.  
 
MOTION:  Dan Iwanicki made a motion to table the matter until Monday, 9 June 2014.  Paul Best 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Item continued until Monday, 9 June 2014. 
 
6. Public Hearing 
 
Eagle Landing, LLC, Proposed Selective Timber Harvest and Two (2) Stream Crossings, on 
Approximately 87 Acres Located off of High Street and Walkley Hill Road, Higganum, CT.  
Further Identified as Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #042-1, Assessor’s Map #24 
Assessor’s Lot #043, Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #044, Assessor’s Map #14 
Assessor’s Lot #092. 
 
Nicholas Zito, forester, Peter Marlowe Forest Products, representing the applicant, and Steve 
Rocco, member, Eagle Landing, LLC, were present. 
 
This matter was on the 10 March 2014 agenda as:  New Business: Peter Marlowe Forest 
Products, Applicant.  Eagle Landing, LLC, Owner.  Location:  High Street, Walkley Hill Road and 
Killingworth Road, Higganum.  Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #042-1, Assessor’s Map #24 
Assessor’s Lot #043, Assessor’s  Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #044, Assessor’s Map #1, Assessor’s 
Lot #092.  Proposed Activity:  Selective Timber Harvest with Two (2) Stream Crossings. 
 
This is a continuation from 14 April 2014. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens reported that he, Mr. Best, Mr. Iwanicki, and Mr. Worthley were present at the 
site walk scheduled for Saturday, 19 April 2014; however, Mr. Best had left before Mr. Worthley 
arrived.  Therefore there was no quorum. 
 
Mr. Iwanicki asked if the mailing receipts had been submitted.  Mr. Zito stated that he does have 
copies of the mailing receipts and will provide them to the Commission. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens reported that there are streams going down roads that didn’t have streams 
before, and that there are places where it was apparent streams would shoot off before, but no 
longer do.  Mr. M. Stephens stated he believes the property would be improved by the proposed 
harvest by requiring the use of bridges and corduroy, replacement/installation of waterbars, 
erosion controls being beefed up more than normal for a forestry project.  Mr. M. Stephens also 
stated that he will be suggesting that the access to the property be cut off. 
 
Mr. M. Stephen’s addressed Nancy Planeta’s concerns pertaining to a well and distribution box 
on her property.  These items were reviewed and there is no cutting taking place around them.  
Also the double slash borders seem to be correct. 
 
Mr. Worthley stated if a similar type of follow up operation should occur, he would like to see a 
condition within the permit to make sure that either the wetlands enforcement officer or the 
Commission is notified that it’s to occur, because they will be responsible for buttoning up the 
waterbars, etc.  In regard to the proposed harvest, Mr. Worthley stated that he sent a document 
around for general information, and believes  the Commission will be seeing more and more of 
forest harvesting of a regeneration nature as opposed to a thinning nature.  Mr. Worthley reported 
that he doesn’t have any qualms about the number of trees to be cut or left as it may be appropri-
ate to open up the canopy to allow sun in as there’s a better chance of regenerating the oak mix. 
 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
12 May 2014  
Unapproved Minutes 

5 

Mr. Best reported viewing a lot of bad erosion on the lower portion of the property and asked how 
the Commission can stop the ATVs and motorcycles from entering the property.  Discussion 
followed in regard to property owners being watchful. 
Nancy Planeta, abutting property owner, stated her primary concern is that the watercourses be 
protected and not damaged any more than they already have been; and if they could be 
remediated, that would be ideal.  Ms. Planeta also asked if something could be done to prevent 
the water from running into High Street, creating a public hazard, because prior to the logging 
High Street didn’t flood.  Discussion followed. 
 
Steve Rocco, member, Eagle Landing, LLC, stated that he’s been an owner of the property for 
parts of four decades starting in 1986 with the exception of three years; and that he is not in favor 
of having the parcel cut. 
 
Using a map, Mr. Rocco pointed out the property where the cut is proposed (Exhibit 1).  Using a 
second map with dots denoting the remaining trees, Mr. Rocco showed the Commission what he 
believes the property will look like after the proposed cut (Exhibit 2).  Mr. Rocco stated that a 
portion of the property is within the Gateway Zone noting that the same ridge that runs through 
Forest Ridge is the same on this parcel.  Mr. M. Stephens stated that the Commission has been 
advised that the property is not a part of Gateway.  Mr. Rocco disagreed stating that the zone 
runs ridge to ridge.  Mr. Puska stated that a review of the Gateway map shows the Gateway Zone 
line skirting the property.  Mr. DeCarli stated that the Gateway Zone is not truly ridge to ridge, but 
that the Zone is statutorily written.  Mr. Rocco stated that the parcel is 87 acres and he believes 
that only 70 acres will be used for the actual cut and that the wetland impacts are understated.  
Mr. Rocco also stated that the wetlands at this time of year a very wet.  Using a third map, Mr. 
Rocco pointed out this area (Exhibit 3).  Mr. Rocco stated that he believes there are two things 
that can happen with the land:  1) partially develop and 2) prefer it be left for open space. 
 
Mr. Rocco stated that he believes too many trees are being removed.  Mr. Worthley asked Mr. 
Rocco to define a tree.  Mr. Rocco stated 10-12 or more inches.  Mr. Worthley explained the 
number and size of stems per acre needed in a regenerating stand.  Mr. Rocco asked what Mr. 
Worthley’s point was.  Mr. Worthley stated that it’s a temporary visible disturbance and that a new 
forest will grow if the land isn’t developed.  Mr. Rocco stated he doesn’t have 100 years.  Mr. 
Worthley cited an article that states that one of the big problems with the forest resource in the 20 
state northeast region is the lack of age class diversity (we have too many stands of 80-100 year 
old and too little young forest stands).  Mr. Worthley stated he doesn’t have an issue with turning 
the parcel into a young forest and that he would like to see it stay forest for all the water, well, and 
recharge service it provides to Higganum Center.  Mr. Rocco stated that he sees the parcel as an 
important piece of open space, potentially, as it’s the start of Cockaponsett Forest and the Land 
Trust owns property that abuts the parcel.  Mr. Worthley stated if the harvest is done right, in five 
years the parcel will look great. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens asked Mr. Rocco how the runoff and other problems will  be addressed.  Mr. 
Rocco stated he’s not opposed to the removal of any trees, but is opposed to the volume 
proposed for removal.  Mr. Worthley stated that there are a lot more trees that aren’t marked than 
those that are.  Mr. Rocco stated the merits of the proposal is too much considering what’s 
happened on the property in the last 20 years and the one from 10 years ago hasn’t healed yet. 
 
Mr. Laurenza asked if Mr. Rocco was a one-third owner.  Mr. Rocco stated he’s a 25 percent 
owner and submitted a copy of the LLC agreement (Exhibit 4 – three pages).  Mr. Rocco read 
one section of the agreement.  Mr. M. Stephens stated that he will have the town’s attorney 
review the agreement.  Mr. Rocco stated that it is his position that he wasn’t informed about the 
proposed harvest, he wasn’t asked about it, and he didn’t know about it. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens asked Mr. Zito when he was planning on beginning work.  Mr. Zito stated if 
approved, not for at least two months. 
 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
12 May 2014  
Unapproved Minutes 

6 

Mr. Laurenza asked Mr. Rocco if he had his own counsel.  Mr. Rocco stated he will ask if he will 
attend the next hearing or provide something in writing.  Mr. Laurenza asked if the application 
isn’t approved, who’s responsible for the erosion that has already occurred.  Mr. Rocco asked if 
there was anything in writing in terms of the damage.  Mr. Puska stated no, that he reviewed the 
site based on the application.  Mr. Rocco stated he would be willing to look at the damaged 
areas, but noted that the land will not be retained. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens stated that the town’s counsel will need to review the LLC Agreement as 
submitted by Mr. Rocco.  Mr. M. Stephens also stated that Mr. Rocco has made it clear that he 
does not want this operation to take place. 
 
Mr. J. Stephens asked Mr. Rocco if he knew the motivation of the other partners behind the 
timber harvest.  Mr. Rocco stated that it’s for the cash and that there’s a difference of opinion as 
to whether it’s worth it or not. 
 
David Carini stated that he’s the recipient of the water flow from the woods behind his property.  
Mr. Carini stated he’s concerned that there be no new access points for pulling timber out that will 
create new flow areas for the water to come down onto abutting properties. 
 
A brief discussion followed in regard to the firewood cutting operation that took place.  Mr. M. 
Stephens stated that he did not recall this operation coming before the Commission.  Ms. Planeta 
stated the cutting took place on the weekends. 
 
Mr. J. Stephens asked if a completion by date could be a condition of an approval.  Mr. M. 
Stephens stated that Mr. Puska will need to review the site to make sure it’s buttoned up.  Mr. 
Zito stated that the contract standard is once the logging starts, they have one year to complete 
the project.   
     
MOTION:  Joe Stephens made a motion to continue the public hearing until Monday, 9 June 
2014, at 7:00 p.m., Town Hall, 21 Field Park Drive, Haddam.  Jeremy DeCarli seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Item continued until Monday, 9 June 2014. 
 
(Recording Clerk’s Note:  Mailing receipts were not submitted into the record.  Need to obtain.) 
 
7. Public Meeting 
 
Eagle Landing, LLC, Proposed Selective Timber Harvest and Two (2) Stream Crossings, on 
Approximately 87 Acres Located off of High Street and Walkley Hill Road, Higganum, CT.  
Further Identified as Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #042-1, Assessor’s Map #24 
Assessor’s Lot #043, Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #044, Assessor’s Map #14 
Assessor’s Lot #092. 
 
Nicholas Zito, forester, Peter Marlowe Forest Products, representing the applicant, and Steve 
Rocco, member, Eagle Landing, LLC, were present. 
 
This matter was on the 10 March 2014 agenda as:  New Business: Peter Marlowe Forest 
Products, Applicant.  Eagle Landing, LLC, Owner.  Location:  High Street, Walkley Hill Road and 
Killingworth Road, Higganum.  Assessor’s Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #042-1, Assessor’s Map #24 
Assessor’s Lot #043, Assessor’s  Map #24 Assessor’s Lot #044, Assessor’s Map #1, Assessor’s 
Lot #092.  Proposed Activity:  Selective Timber Harvest with Two (2) Stream Crossings. 
 
Item continued until Monday, 9 June 2014. 
 
 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
12 May 2014  
Unapproved Minutes 

7 

8. New Business 
 
None. 
 
9. Approval/Correction of Minutes 
 
MOTION:  Dan Iwanicki made a motion to approve the 10 March 2014 minutes as submitted.  
Tom Worthley seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Corrections to the 14 April 2014 minutes:  page 3, MJM Land Development, paragraph four, first 
sentence – change “eight-five” to “eighty-five”; page 3, MJM Land Development, paragraph six, 
first sentence – add “not” between “was” and “a”; page 3, MJM Land Development, paragraph 
eight, end of last sentence – add “from a wetland” after “away”; page 4, Public Hearing, Eagle 
Landing, LLC, third paragraph, last sentence – change “legal counsel” to “staff”; page 4, Public 
Hearing, Eagle Landing, LLC, last paragraph, first sentence – change “selective” to “diameter”; 
page 5, Public Hearing, Eagle Landing, LLC, fifth paragraph, second line ‘ change “many” to 
“may”; and page 6, Eddinger Subdivision, third paragraph, first sentence – add “expirations” after 
“approval”.  
 
MOTION:  Joe Laurenza made a motion to approve the 14 April 2014 minutes as amended.  Joe 
Stephens seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
10. Adjourn 
 
MOTION: Tom Worthley made a motion to adjourn.  Jeremy DeCarli seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Bunny Hall Batzner 

 

Bunny Hall Batzner 
Recording Clerk 
 
 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, 9 June 2014. 
 


